

Scheme Number: TR010041

6.8 Environmental Statement – Appendix

8.7 Gazetteer of Cultural Heritage Assets

Part B

APFP Regulation 5(2)(a)

Planning Act 2008

Infrastructure Planning (Applications: Prescribed Forms and Procedure) Regulations 2009



Infrastructure Planning

Planning Act 2008

The Infrastructure Planning (Applications: Prescribed Forms and Procedure) Regulations 2009

The A1 in Northumberland: Morpeth to Ellingham

Development Consent Order 20[xx]

Environmental Statement - Appendix

Regulation Reference:	APFP Regulation 5(2)(a)
Planning Inspectorate Scheme	TR010041
Reference	
Application Document Reference	TR010041/APP/6.8
Author:	A1 in Northumberland: Morpeth to Ellingham
	Project Team, Highways England

Version	Date	Status of Version
Rev 0	June 2020	Application Issue



CONTENTS

1	INTRODUCTION	1
1.1	DOCUMENT SCOPE	1
1.2	ASSESSMENT METHODOLOGY	2
1.3	STUDY AREAS	3
2	MAIN SCHEME AREA	4
3	MAIN COMPOUND	14
4	LIONHEART ENTERPRISE PARK COMPOUND	16
	REFERENCES	17
	TABLES	
	Table 1-1 – Summary of Archaeological and Historic Periods	2
	Table 2-1 – Designated Heritage Assets in the 1 km Study Area	4
	Table 2-2 - Non-Designated Heritage Assets in the 500 m Study Area	9
	Table 3-1 – Designated Heritage Assets within 1km of Main Compound	14
	Table 3-2 – Non-Designated Heritage Assets within 500 m of the Main Compound	15
	Table 4-1 – Designated Heritage Assets within 1 km of Lionheart Enterprise Park Compound	16

Part B: Alnwick to Ellingham 6.8 Environmental Statement



1 INTRODUCTION

1.1 DOCUMENT SCOPE

- 1.1.1. This updated gazetteer supersedes the gazetteer provided in the Historic Environment Desk Based Assessment (HEDBA) (Appendix 8.1, Volume 8 of this Environmental Statement (ES) (Application Document Reference TR010041/APP/6.8)) (completed in August 2019)) and relates to the design of Part B of the Scheme assessed as part of this ES. It is based on the data held in the National Heritage List for England (prefixed with NHL), the Northumberland Historic Environment Record (prefixed with HER) and identified during the course of the assessment (prefixed with WSP).
- 1.1.2. The updated gazetteer should also be read together with Chapter 8: Cultural Heritage (Volume 3 of this ES (Application Document Reference TR010041/APP/6.3)) and the introductory chapters of this ES (Chapters 1 to 4, Volume 1 of this ES (Application Document Reference TR010041/APP/6.1)), in particular Chapter 2: The Scheme (Volume 1 of this ES).
- 1.1.3. Part B comprises of the widening of the existing A1 into a dual carriageway from Alnwick northwards to Ellingham (Part B Main Scheme Area), a construction compound located at Felton (Main Compound) and a construction compound located at Alnwick (Lionheart Enterprise Park Compound) which is split into two sites (eastern site and western site) which are located either side of the existing Highways England maintenance depot (refer to Chapter 2: The Scheme, Volume 1 of this ES (Application Document Reference TR010041/APP/6.1)).
- 1.1.4. The updated gazetteer presents:
 - a. The asset's reference number.
 - b. Name of the asset.
 - c. The designation of the asset.
 - d. The asset type (monument, findspot or built heritage).
 - e. Date of the asset (see Table 1-1 below).
 - f. The location of the asset (inside or outside of the Order Limits of Part B).
 - g. The sensitivity/importance of the asset.
 - h. Magnitude of impact of the Part B on the asset.
 - i. Significance (i.e. the "effect") of the impact on the asset before mitigation measures are implemented.
 - j. Mitigation proposed (refer to Section 8.9, Chapter 8: Cultural Heritage, Volume 3 of this ES (Application Document Reference: TR010041/APP/6.3) for a description of the proposed mitigations for this topic).
 - k. Significance of Residual effects.
- 1.1.5. Table 2-1 and Table 2-2 presents the heritage assets in the Study Area for the Part B Main Scheme Area, Table 3-1 and Table 3-2 presents the heritage assets in the Study Area for the Main Compound and Table 4-1 and presents the heritage assets in the Study Area for the Lionheart Enterprise Park Compound.

Part B: Alnwick to Ellingham 6.8 Environmental Statement



1.1.6. The location of all the heritage presented in the updated gazetteer is presented in Figure 8.1: Designated Heritage Assets within 1 km of the Scheme and Figure 8.2: Non-Designated Heritage Assets within 500 m of the Scheme (Volume 6 of this ES (Application Document Reference TR010041/APP/6.6)).

1.2 ASSESSMENT METHODOLOGY

- 1.2.1. The methodology for the assessment of the sensitivity/importance, the magnitude of impacts and the significance of the effect is outlined in Section 8.4 of Chapter 8: Cultural Heritage, Volume 3 of this ES (Application Document Reference: TR010041/APP/6.3). It has been undertaken in accordance with the methodologies described in the following guidance documents:
 - **a.** Historic Environment Good Practice Advice in Planning Policy Notes 2-3 managing significance and setting (**Ref. 1** and **Ref. 2**).
 - b. Design Manual for Roads and Bridges (DMRB), Volume 11, Section 3, Part 2 (DMRB: HA 208/07) (Ref. 3).
 - c. Highways Agency (now Highways England) Scheme Assessment Reporting Volume 5, Section 1, Part 2 (TA 37/93) (Ref. 4).
 - d. Chartered Institute for Archaeologists standards and guidance documents (Ref. 5 and Ref. 6).
- 1.2.2. A summary of the British archaeological and historical periods and their corresponding dates is presented in **Table 1-1** below.

Table 1-1 – Summary of Archaeological and Historic Periods

Period	Date Range
Prehistoric Period:	
Palaeolithic	500,000 - 10,000 BC
Mesolithic	10,000 – 3,500 BC
Neolithic	3,500 – 2,200 BC
Bronze Age	2,200 – 700 BC
Iron Age	700 BC – AD 43
Romano-British	AD 43 – AD 410
Early Medieval (Anglo-Saxon and Viking periods)	AD 410 – AD 1066
Late Medieval	AD 1066 – AD 1540
Post-Medieval	AD 1540 – <i>c</i> 1901

Part B: Alnwick to Ellingham 6.8 Environmental Statement



Period	Date Range
Modern	Post-1901

1.3 STUDY AREAS

- 1.3.1. The Study Areas were based on guidance outlined in DMRB Volume 11 Section 3 Part 2 HA 208/07 Cultural Heritage (**Ref. 3**) and agreed in consultation with Northumberland County Council (NCC).
- 1.3.2. Two Study Areas were used for the assessment. A wider Study Area was applied for the assessment of settings of designated heritage assets and Conservation Areas, and this extends up to 1 km from the Order Limits of Part B (Figure 8.1: Designated Heritage Assets within 1 km of the Scheme, Volume 6 of this ES (Application Document Reference: TR010041/APP/6.6)). The extent of the 1 km Study Area was reviewed against the Zone of Theoretical Visibility (ZTV) Model (Figure 7.1: Zone of Theoretical Visibility, Volume 6 of this ES) and during the site walk over survey. It was judged that due to the topography in the wider area, the distance and all the intervening visual barriers, no designated assets beyond the 1 km Study Area would be adversely impacted through a change in setting.
- 1.3.3. An inner Study Area of 500 m extending out from the Order Limits of Part B was applied for the identification of all types of heritage assets (designated, non-designated, potential archaeological remains and historic landscapes) to establish the known historic environment context and the potential for hitherto unknown below-ground archaeological remains (refer to Figure 8.2: Non-Designated Heritage Assets within 500 m of the Scheme, Volume 6 of this ES (Application Document Reference TR010041/APP/6.6)). The quantity of data obtained within the 500 m Study Area was judged to be appropriate to inform the baseline and to adequately determine the potential for additional currently unknown assets within the Order Limits of Part B based on those found in the surrounding environment.



2 PART B MAIN SCHEME AREA

Table 2-1 – Designated Heritage Assets in the 1 km Study Area

NHL Ref Number	Name	Designation	Asset Type	Date	Inside or Outside the Order Limits of Part B	Sensitivity/ Importance	Magnitude of Impact	Significance of impact before mitigation	Mitigating Work Proposed	Significance of Residual effects
1018499	Prehistoric Burial Mound, 420m north-west of East Linkhall	Scheduled Monument	Below- Ground	Prehistoric	Outside	High	Temporary Negligible Adverse Impacts on Setting During Construction	Temporary Slight Adverse	Non- proposed	Temporary Slight Adverse
1018348	North Charlton medieval village and open field system	Scheduled Monument	Below- Ground	Late Medieval	Outside	High	Temporary Negligible Adverse Impacts on Setting During Construction	Temporary Slight Adverse	Non- proposed	Temporary Slight Adverse
							Permanent Negligible Adverse Impacts on Setting During Operation	Permanent Slight Adverse	Non- proposed	Permanent Slight Adverse
1006500	Camp at West Linkhall	Scheduled Monument	Below- Ground	Unknown	Outside	High	Temporary Minor Adverse Impact on Setting During Construction	Temporary Moderate Adverse	Non- proposed	Temporary Moderate Adverse
							Permanent Minor Adverse Impact on Setting During Operation	Permanent Slight Adverse	Non- proposed	Permanent Slight Adverse
1017955	Iron Age defended settlement in Camp Plantation, 350m north west of North Charlton Mill	Scheduled Monument	Below- Ground	Iron Age	Outside	High	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral
1006564	Ellsnook round barrow, 175m north east of Heiferlaw Bridge	Scheduled Monument	Below- Ground	Prehistoric	Outside	High	Temporary Negligible Adverse Impacts on Setting During Construction	Temporary Slight Adverse	Non- proposed	Temporary Slight Adverse



NHL Ref Number	Name	Designation	Asset Type	Date	Inside or Outside the Order Limits of Part B	Sensitivity/ Importance	Magnitude of Impact	Significance of impact before mitigation	Mitigating Work Proposed	Significance of Residual effects
1014061	Heiferlaw tower house, 230m north east of Holywell	Scheduled Monument	Below- Ground	Late Medieval	Outside	High	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral
1014080	Heiferlaw defended settlement and Second World War Zero Station, 100m north of Holywell	Scheduled Monument	Below- Ground	Iron Age - Modern	Outside	High	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral
1304282	Heiferlaw Tower	Grade I Listed Building	Built Heritage	Late Medieval	Outside	High	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral
1042002	Charlton Hall	Grade II* Listed Building	Built Heritage	Post- Medieval	Outside	High	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral
1041756	Rennington Moor Farmhouse and Attached Farmbuilding	Grade II Listed Building	Built Heritage	Post- Medieval	Outside	Medium	Temporary Minor Adverse Impact on Setting During Construction	Temporary Slight Adverse	N/A	Temporary Slight Adverse
1154641	Yard Walls to South of Farmbuildings	Grade II Listed Building	Built Heritage	Post- Medieval	Outside	Medium	Temporary Minor Adverse Impact on Setting During Construction	Temporary Slight Adverse	Non- proposed	Temporary Slight Adverse
1371080	Patterson Cottage	Grade II Listed Building	Built Heritage	Post- Medieval	Outside	Medium	Temporary Moderate Adverse Impact on Setting During Construction	Temporary Moderate Adverse	Non- proposed	Temporary Moderate Adverse
							Permanent Negligible Adverse Impact on Setting During Operation	Permanent Slight Adverse	Non- proposed	Permanent Slight Adverse
1045880	Cross on North Side of B6347 120 metres West of A1 Junction	Grade II Listed Building	Built Heritage	Late Medieval	Outside	Medium	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral
1298856	West Linkhall Farmhouse	Grade II Listed Building	Built Heritage	Post- Medieval	Outside	Medium	Temporary Moderate Adverse Impact on	Temporary Moderate Adverse	Non- proposed	Temporary Moderate Adverse



NHL Ref Number	Name	Designation	Asset Type	Date	Inside or Outside the Order Limits of Part B	Sensitivity/ Importance	Magnitude of Impact	Significance of impact before mitigation	Mitigating Work Proposed	Significance of Residual effects
							Setting During Construction			
							Permanent Negligible Adverse Impact on Setting During Operation	Permanent Slight Adverse	Non- proposed	Permanent Slight Adverse
1154647	Limekiln South of Kiln Plantation 700 metres south- east of Rock Midstead	Grade II Listed Building	Built Heritage	Post- Medieval	Outside	Medium	Temporary Minor Adverse Impact on Setting During Construction	Temporary Slight Adverse	Non- proposed	Temporary Slight Adverse
1304291	Milepost 420 metres north of Track to Heckley Fence	Grade II Listed Building	Built Heritage	Post- Medieval	Outside	Medium	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral
1371059	Dovecote to East of Heckley Fence Farmhouse with Attached Wall	Grade II Listed Building	Built Heritage	Post- Medieval	Outside	Medium	Permanent Moderate Adverse Impact on Setting During Operation	Moderate Adverse	N/A	Moderate Adverse
1041755	Barn and Engine House on North Side of Main Farmbuilding Group	Grade II Listed Building	Built Heritage	Post- Medieval	Outside	Medium	Temporary Minor Adverse Impact on Setting During Construction	Temporary Slight Adverse	Non- proposed	Temporary Slight Adverse
1303729	Smithy at South East Corner of Main Farmbuilding Group	Grade II Listed Building	Built Heritage	Post- Medieval	Outside	Medium	Temporary Minor Adverse Impact on Setting During Construction	Temporary Slight Adverse	N/A	Temporary Slight Adverse
1041754	Milepost 300 metres North of Denwick Lane End	Grade II Listed Building	Built Heritage	Post- Medieval	Outside	Medium	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral
1153486	Milepost 40 metres north of Entrance to Heckley House	Grade II Listed Building	Built Heritage	Post- Medieval	Outside	Medium	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral
1042044	Heckley House	Grade II Listed Building	Built Heritage	Post- Medieval	Outside	Medium	Temporary Moderate Adverse Impact on Setting During Construction	Temporary Moderate Adverse	N/A	Temporary Moderate Adverse



NHL Ref Number	Name	Designation	Asset Type	Date	Inside or Outside the Order Limits of Part B	Sensitivity/ Importance	Magnitude of Impact	Significance of impact before mitigation	Mitigating Work Proposed	Significance of Residual effects
1153391	Milepost 380 metres north of Denwick Bridge End	Grade II Listed Building	Built Heritage	Post- Medieval	Outside	Medium	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral
1042041	Milepost 80 metres south of Broom House Roundabout	Grade II Listed Building	Built Heritage	Post- Medieval	Outside	Medium	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral
1153333	Malcolm's Cross and Remains of Older Cross on West	Grade II Listed Building	Built Heritage	Post- Medieval	Outside	Medium	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral
1153547	1, 3 and 5, Denwick Village	Grade II Listed Building	Built Heritage	Post- Medieval	Outside	Medium	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral
1042046	7 and 9, Denwick Village	Grade II Listed Building	Built Heritage	Post- Medieval	Outside	Medium	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral
1304233	11 and 13, Denwick Village	Grade II Listed Building	Built Heritage	Post- Medieval	Outside	Medium	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral
1304237	21 and 23, Denwick Village	Grade II Listed Building	Built Heritage	Post- Medieval	Outside	Medium	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral
1042047	17 and 19, Denwick Village	Grade II Listed Building	Built Heritage	Post- Medieval	Outside	Medium	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral
1433767	Denwick War Memorial	Grade II Listed Building	Built Heritage	Modern	Outside	Medium	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral
1042048	Front Walls and Gatepiers to Numbers 1-23 (Odd)	Grade II Listed Building	Built Heritage	Post- Medieval	Outside	Medium	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral
1042050	Pant and Adjacent Walls 30 metres South West of Road Junction in Centre of Village	Grade II Listed Building	Built Heritage	Post- Medieval	Outside	Medium	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral
1186919	Stable and Coach House Range, with Attached Walls 50 metres north-west of Charlton Hall	Grade II Listed Building	Built Heritage	Post- Medieval	Outside	Medium	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral
1042003	Attached Outbuilding Range and Garden Wall to northwest of Charlton Hall	Grade II Listed Building	Built Heritage	Post- Medieval	Outside	Medium	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral



NHL Ref Number	Name	Designation	Asset Type	Date	Inside or Outside the Order Limits of Part B	Sensitivity/ Importance	Magnitude of Impact	Significance of impact before mitigation	Mitigating Work Proposed	Significance of Residual effects
1371104	Brockley Hall Farmhouse	Grade II Listed Building	Built Heritage	Post- Medieval	Outside	Medium	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral
1439802	South Charlton War Memorial	Grade II Listed Building	Built Heritage	Modern	Outside	Medium	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral
1045887	Church of St James	Grade II Listed Building	Built Heritage	Post- Medieval	Outside	Medium	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral
1371105	Outbuilding and Yard Wall to North of Grovewood House	Grade II Listed Building	Built Heritage	Post- Medieval	Outside	Medium	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral
1045853	Grovewood House	Grade II Listed Building	Built Heritage	Post- Medieval	Outside	Medium	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral
1042018	Islaford Bridge Carrying Humbleheugh Track Over White House Burn	Grade II Listed Building	Built Heritage	Post- Medieval	Outside	Medium	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral
1041757	Covered Reservoir 100 Metres North of Rennington West Farmhouse	Grade II Listed Building	Built Heritage	Post- Medieval	Outside	Medium	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral
1153931	Old Limekiln at Harlaw Hill Waste Disposal Site	Grade II Listed Building	Built Heritage	Post- Medieval	Outside	Medium	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral
1067717	Heckley High House Farmhouse with Adjacent Outbuilding to West	Grade II Listed Building	Built Heritage	Post- Medieval	Outside	Medium	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral
1042042	Remains of White Cross 400 Metres North East of Denwick Bridge	Grade II Listed Building	Built Heritage	Post- Medieval	Outside	Medium	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral
1001041	Alnwick Castle	Grade I Registered Park and Garden	Built Heritage	Post- Medieval	Outside	High	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral
N/A	Rock	Conservation Area	Built Heritage	Early Medieval	Outside	Medium	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral



Table 2-2 - Non-Designated Heritage Assets in the 500 m Study Area

Asset Ref	Site Name	Asset Type	Date	Inside or Outside the Order Limits of Part B	Sensitivity /Importance	Magnitude of Impact	Significance of Impact before Mitigation	Mitigating Work Proposed	Significance of Residual Effects
16878	Milepost north of Shipperton Bridge (A1) with inscription details for Alnwick (6 miles) and Belford (8 miles)	Built Heritage	Post- Medieval	Inside	Low	Permanent Major Adverse	Permanent Moderate Adverse	The Milepost would need to be removed from its current position and relocated along Part B once construction is complete	Permanent Slight Adverse
5033	Stone Cists and Tumulus identified in the late 1800s. An inhumation was present along with a riveted knife-dagger	Findspot	Prehistoric	Inside	High	Where additional remains found, Major Adverse	Permanent Large Adverse	Preservation by Record	Permanent Moderate Adverse
5062	Two flint flakes from Charlton Mires which is likely to be from the Neolithic or Early Bronze Age period	Findspot	Prehistoric	Inside	Medium	Where additional remains found, Major	Permanent Large Adverse	Preservation by Record	Permanent Moderate Adverse
WSP002	Charlton Mires Farm, first appears on the 1861 OS map	Built Heritage	Post- Medieval	Inside	Low	Major Adverse	Permanent Moderate Adverse	Preservation by Record	Permanent Slight Adverse
WSP007	Rock Lodge, first appears on the 1861 OS maps	Built Heritage	Post- Medieval	Inside	Low	Temporary Minor Adverse Impact on Setting During Construction	Temporary Slight Adverse	N/A	Temporary Slight Adverse
WSP014	Road Bridge located adjacent to the Kiln Plantation	Built Heritage	Post- Medieval	Inside	Negligible	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral
WSP015	The Avenue – a tree lined avenue shown of Greenwood's Map of Northumberland 1828	Built Heritage	Unknown	Inside	Low	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral
WSP016	Earthworks to the east of Heckley Fence. These comprise a series of rectilinear earthworks in a hollow way identified to the west of Heckley House at the bottom of the slope	Monument	Unknown	Inside	Unknown	Permanent Major Adverse	Permanent Slight to Large Adverse (depending on sensitivity/importance of asset)	Preservation by Record	Slight to Moderate Adverse (depending on sensitivity/importance of asset)



Asset Ref	Site Name	Asset Type	Date	Inside or Outside the Order Limits of Part B	Sensitivity /Importance	Magnitude of Impact	Significance of Impact before Mitigation	Mitigating Work Proposed	Significance of Residual Effects
WSP018	A pond shown on the Armstrong's map of 1769 to the south of Linkhall	Monument	Unknown	Inside	Negligible	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral
4420	Possible Iron Age enclosure	Monument	Prehistoric	Outside	Unknown	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral
4439	Broomhouse Farm, collared, decorated urn	Findspot	Prehistoric	Outside	Medium	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral
5045	Site of Bronze Age barrow between Brockley Hall and Charlton Mires	Monument	Prehistoric	Outside	Medium	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral
4434	Cropmark of enclosure and hut circles	Monument	Prehistoric?	Outside	Unknown	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral
4451	Cropmark of a ring ditch	Monument	Prehistoric?	Outside	Unknown	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral
4430	Heckley deserted Medieval village	Monument	Medieval	Outside	Medium	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral
5055	Linkhall deserted Medieval village	Monument	Medieval	Outside	Medium	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral
5650	Broxfield deserted Medieval village	Monument	Medieval	Outside	Medium	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral
4437	Rennington Moor Quarry lime kiln	Monument	Post- Medieval	Outside	Low	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral
5035	Tumulus on a hill in Link Hall Field, North Charlton. It contained a Bronze Age urn of 'the common shape'	Monument	Prehistoric/ Bronze Age	Outside	Medium	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral
5037	Kitty Carter Well was present on a 1599 map	Built Heritage	Post- Medieval	Outside	Low	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral
5056	Charlton Burn lime kiln	Monument	Post- Medieval	Outside	Low	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral
22436	The Spread Eagle Inn	Built Heritage	Post- Medieval	Outside	Low	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral



Asset Ref	Site Name	Asset Type	Date	Inside or Outside the Order Limits of Part B	Sensitivity /Importance	Magnitude of Impact	Significance of Impact before Mitigation	Mitigating Work Proposed	Significance of Residual Effects
25114	North Charlton Mill is an estate watermill, typical of Northumberland. It was finished with stonework and a range of related Built Heritages. The earliest documentary evidence of this is 1295AD	Built Heritage	Post- Medieval	Outside	Low	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral
22431	Buck Well marked on the 1st edition OS map	Built Heritage	Post- Medieval	Outside	Low	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral
22429	Well, marked on the 1st edition OS map	Built Heritage	Post- Medieval	Outside	Low	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral
16836	Milepost near Ellsnook Plantation. It is inscribed with the distances to Alnwick (4 miles) and Belford (10 miles).	Built Heritage	Post- Medieval	Outside	Low	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral
22433	Well, marked on the 1st edition OS map.	Built Heritage	Post- Medieval	Outside	Low	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral
22435	Well, marked on the 1st edition OS map.	Built Heritage	Post- Medieval	Outside	Low	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral
19936	Polygonal lozenge-shaped pillbox, Heiferlaw.	Built Heritage	Post- Medieval	Outside	Low	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral
22428	Traveller's Rest Public House marked on the 1st edition OS map.	Built Heritage	Post- Medieval	Outside	Low	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral
19874	Polygonal lozenge-shaped pillbox north-east of Heckley House.	Built Heritage	Modern	Outside	Medium	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral
4447	Pillbox at Loaning Head in a polygonal shape.	Built Heritage	Modern	Outside	Medium	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral
26255	Seahouses landing ground, Rennington. Landing ground of 77 squadron in WWI	Monument	Modern	Outside	Medium	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral



Asset Ref	Site Name	Asset Type	Date	Inside or Outside the Order Limits of Part B	Sensitivity /Importance	Magnitude of Impact	Significance of Impact before Mitigation	Mitigating Work Proposed	Significance of Residual Effects
4440	Cropmark of a sub-rectangular enclosure	Monument	Unknown	Outside	Unknown	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral
4449	Cropmark of Loaning Head rectilinear enclosure	Monument	Unknown	Outside	Unknown	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral
5041	Site of Camp (Chester Hill)	Monument	Unknown	Outside	Unknown	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral
5043	Undated earthworks	Monument	Unknown	Outside	Unknown	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral
WSP001	West Lodge. A lodge shown on the 1861 OS map	Built Heritage	Post- Medieval	Outside	Low	Temporary Moderate Adverse Impact on Setting During Construction	Temporary Slight Adverse	Non-proposed	Temporary Slight Adverse
						Permanent Slight Adverse Impact on Setting During Operation	Permanent Slight Adverse	Non-proposed	Permanent Slight Adverse
WSP003	Drythropple property shown on the 1861 OS Map	Built Heritage	Post- Medieval	Outside	Low	Temporary Minor Adverse Impact on Setting During Construction	Temporary Slight Adverse	Non-proposed	Temporary Slight Adverse
WSP004	Rock Middle Stead - Farm and Smithy on the 1861 OS Map	Built Heritage	Post- Medieval	Outside	Low	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral
WSP005	Site of Rock Lough House on the 1861 OS Map	Built Heritage	Post- Medieval	Outside	Low	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral
WSP006	Rock South Farm on the 1861 OS Map	Built Heritage	Post- Medieval	Outside	Low	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral
WSP007	Rock Lodge, first appears on the 1861 OS maps	Built Heritage	Post- Medieval	Inside	Low	Temporary Moderate Adverse Impact on Setting During Construction	Temporary Slight Adverse	Non-proposed	Temporary Slight Adverse



Asset Ref	Site Name	Asset Type	Date	Inside or Outside the Order Limits of Part B	Sensitivity /Importance	Magnitude of Impact	Significance of Impact before Mitigation	Mitigating Work Proposed	Significance of Residual Effects
WSP008	The site of Heckley Grange is shown on the 1861 OS Map to the east of Heckley House	Monument	Post- Medieval	Outside	Low	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral
WSP009	The location of an isolated stone is shown on the 1861 OS Map to the north of Stobrig Plantation	Monument	Unknown	Outside	Low	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral
WSP011	Broom House on the 1861 OS Map	Built Heritage	Post- Medieval	Outside	Low	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral
WSP012	Broom House Farm on the 1890s OS Map	Built Heritage	Post- Medieval	Outside	Low	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral
WSP013	Heiferlaw Bank on the 1861 OS Map	Built Heritage	Unknown	Outside	Low	Temporary Minor Adverse Impact on Setting During Construction	Temporary Slight Adverse	Non-proposed	Temporary Slight Adverse
WSP017	A pond and damn shown on the 1861 OS map to the west of Heckley Fence	Monument	Unknown	Outside	Negligible	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral



MAIN COMPOUND 3

Table 3-1 – Designated Heritage Assets within 1km of Main Compound

NHLE Ref	Name	Designation	Asset Type	Date	Inside or Outside the Order Limits of Part B	Sensitivity/ Importance	Magnitude of Impact	Significance of Impact before Mitigation	Mitigating Work Proposed	Significance of Residual Effects
1371021	Milepost approximately 55m south-west of Thirston New Houses Farmhouse	Grade II Listed Building	Built	Post- Medieval	Inside	Medium	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral
1154561	Greenhouse 120m east of Felton Park with Potting Shed at Rear	Grade II* Listed Building	Built	Post- Medieval	Outside	High	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral
1041874	Garden Wall to east of Felton Park	Grade I Listed Building	Built	Post- Medieval	Outside	High	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral
1041885	Felton Mill	Grade II Listed Building	Built	Post- Medieval	Outside	Medium	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral
1042133	Old Farmhouse at Hemelspeth with yard walls and outhouses to the north	Grade II Listed Building	Built	Post- Medieval	Outside	Medium	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral
1156133	Farm buildings at Hemelspeth	Grade II Listed Building	Built	Post- Medieval	Outside	Medium	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral
1156136	Thirston New Houses Farmhouse	Grade II Listed Building	Built	Post- Medieval	Outside	Medium	Temporary Minor Adverse Impact on Setting During Construction	Temporary Slight Adverse	Non-proposed	Temporary Slight Adverse
1303774	Felton Park	Grade II Listed Building	Built	Post- Medieval	Outside	Medium	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral
1371126	Roman Catholic Church of St Mary.	Grade II Listed Building	Built	Post- Medieval	Outside	Medium	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral



Table 3-2 - Non-Designated Heritage Assets within 500 m of the Main Compound

Site Ref	Name	Asset Type	Date	Inside or Outside the Order Limits of Part B	Sensitivity /Importance	Magnitude of Impact	Significance of Impact before Mitigation	Mitigating Work Proposed	Significance of Residual Effects
11356	Mesolithic Flints near to West Moor Farm	Findspot	Mesolithic	Outside	Medium	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral
11359	Cropmark of double ditched rectilinear enclosure	Monument	Unknown	Outside	Unknown	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral
19365	19th century house of Felshott, formerly known as the Pineapple Inn.	Built Heritage	Post- Medieval	Outside	Low	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral



LIONHEART ENTERPRISE PARK COMPOUND

Table 4-1 – Designated Heritage Assets within 1 km of Lionheart Enterprise Park Compound

NHLE Ref	Name	Designation	Asset Type	Date	Inside or Outside the Order Limits of Part B	Sensitivity/ Importance	Magnitude of Impact	Significance of Impact before Mitigation	Mitigating Work Proposed	Significance of Residual Effects
1042019	Greensfield Moor Farmhouse	Grade II Listed Building	Built	Post- Medieval	Outside	Medium	Temporary Minor Adverse Impact on Setting During Construction	Temporary Slight Adverse	Non-proposed	Temporary Slight Adverse
1052194	South Chapel at Alnwick Cemetery	Grade I Listed Building	Built	Post- Medieval	Outside	Medium	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral
1237596	North Chapel at Alnwick Cemetery	Grade II Listed Building	Built	Post- Medieval	Outside	Medium	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral
1372336	Lodge and Gates at Alnwick Cemetery	Grade II Listed Building	Built	Post- Medieval	Outside	Medium	No Change	Neutral	N/A	Neutral

Part B: Alnwick to Ellingham 6.8 Environmental Statement



REFERENCES

- **Ref. 1** Historic England (2015) Historic Environment Good Practice Advice in Planning 2: Managing Significance in Decision-Taking in the Historic Environment.
- **Ref. 2** Historic England (2017) Historic Environment Good Practice Advice in Planning 3 (2nd Edition): The Setting of Heritage Assets.
- **Ref. 3** Highways England (2007) Design Manual for Road and Bridges Volume 11 Section 3 Part 2 HA 208/07 Cultural Heritage.
- **Ref. 4** Highways England (1993) Highways Agency Scheme Assessment Reporting Volume 5, Section 1, Part 2 (TA37/93).
- **Ref. 5** Chartered Institute for Archaeologists (ClfA) (2017) Standard and guidance for historic environment desk-based assessment.
- Ref. 6 ClfA (2014) Code of Conduct.

© Crown copyright 2020.

You may re-use this information (not including logos) free of charge in any format or medium, under the terms of the Open Government Licence. To view this licence:

visit www.nationalarchives.gov.uk /doc/open-government-licence/write to the Information Policy Team, The National Archives, Kew, London TW9 4DU, or email psi@nationalarchives.gsi.gov.uk.

This document is also available on our website at www.gov.uk /highways

If you have any enquiries about this document A1inNorthumberland@highwaysengland.co.uk or call **0300 470 4580***.

*Calls to 03 numbers cost no more than a national rate call to an 01 or 02 number and must count towards any inclusive minutes in the same way as 01 and 02 calls.

These rules apply to calls from any type of line including mobile, BT, other fixed line or payphone. Calls may be recorded or monitored.

Registered office Bridge House, 1 Walnut Tree Close, Guildford GU1 4LZ Highways England Company Limited registered in England and Wales number 09346363